

#### COPYRIGHT

©1994-2018 Automation Centre, L.C. All Rights Reserved. This manual and the software described in it are copyrighted with all rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed stored in any retrieval system or translated into any language in any form without the express written permission of Automation Centre, L.C.

#### TRADEMARKS

TrackerOffice® is a registered trademark of Automation Centre, and Tracker Suite, TrackerSuite.Net, Personnel Tracker.Net, Customer Tracker.Net, Project Tracker.Net, Expense Tracker.Net, Purchase Tracker.Net, Asset Tracker.Net, Payment Tracker.Net, Invoice Tracker.Net, Time Tracker.Net, Support Tracker.Net, Personnel Tracker, Customer Tracker, Project Tracker, Expense Tracker, Purchase Tracker, Time Tracker, Prospect Tracker, Applicant Tracker, Asset Tracker, Support Tracker, Tracker Data Warehouse, Tracker Suite for HR, Tracker Suite for Projects, Tracker Suite for Sales, Tracker Suite for IT are all trademarks of the Automation Centre. IBM Notes, Domino, and Notes are registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation. Microsoft, Microsoft Project, Microsoft Word, Excel, Exchange, Outlook, and SQL Server are registered trademarks of the Microsoft Corporation. Any brand names, company names, or trademarks in this manual are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

#### LIMITED WARRANTY ON SOFTWARE

Except as provided in the license agreement, if any, Automation Centre and its suppliers disclaim all implied warranties on the software and manuals, including, without limitation, warranties of merchantability, performance, and fitness for a particular purpose. Neither the Automation Centre nor its suppliers will be liable for any bug, error, omission, defect, deficiency or nonconformity in any software. As a result, the software is sold "As Is," and the purchaser assumes the entire risk as to its quality and performance.

Automation Centre and its suppliers shall in no event be liable for direct, indirect, special incidental, contingent or consequential damages resulting from any defect in the software or its documentation including damages from loss of data, downtime, loss of goodwill, damage to or replacement of equipment or property, even if the Automation Centre has been advised of the possibility of such damages. You agree that the Automation Centre and its suppliers' liability arising out of contract, negligence, strict liability in tort or warranty shall not exceed any amounts paid by you for this product. Any written or oral information or advice given about this product from the Automation Centre or its dealers, distributors, employees, or agents will in no way increase the scope of this warranty, nor may you rely on such oral or written communication. Some states do not allow the exclusion or limitation of implied warranties or liability for incidental or consequential damages, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to you. This warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights that vary from state to state. The laws of the State of Arizona shall govern this agreement.

#### DISCLAIMER

On an ongoing basis, Automation Centre continues to make improvements to both our Software and Documentation as our goal is to enhance the overall user experience with Tracker Suite. In this pursuit, while Automation Centre makes every effort to ensure that our User Guides match our software, some features or functionality within the Tracker Suite modules may differ from their respective User Guides between releases.



### **Automation Centre**

435 E. 9th Street Tucson, AZ 85705 (520) 882 – 9287 www.Acentre.com

# Contents

1. Introduction	1
About this Guide	1
Notes, Tips and Comments	1
Other Help Sources	2
About Expense Tracker	2
Typical User Roles	3
Expense Tracker Standard Features	3
The Expense Report Process	5
Integration with Other Modules	5
Summary	6
2. Expense Tracker Basics	7
Opening Expense Tracker	7
Managing Personal Expense Reports	. 10
Creating a New Expense Report	. 10
Creating an Expense Report from a Template	. 14
Updating a Personal Expense Report	. 14
Summary	.14
3 Advanced Expanse Tracker	15
	, IJ
Creating on Exponen Bonart for another Llear	15
Creating an Expense Report for another User	. 15
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports	. 15 . 16
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views	. 15 . 16 . 16 . 17
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports	. 15 . 16 . 16 . 17
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review	. 15 . 16 . 16 . 17 . 18
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports	. 15 . 16 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports Remove from Inbox	. 15 . 16 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email Processing Expense Reports	. 15 . 16 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports. Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email. Processing Expense Reports	. 15 . 16 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email Processing Expense Reports Processing Multiple Expense Reports	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email Processing Expense Reports Processing Multiple Expense Reports Un-processing Expense Reports Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21 . 21
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email Processing Expense Reports Processing Expense Reports Un-processing Expense Reports Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21 . 21
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports. Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email Processing Expense Reports Un-processing Expense Reports Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports. Archiving/Un-archiving an Expense Report	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21 . 21 . 22 . 22
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports. Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email. Processing Expense Reports Processing Multiple Expense Reports Un-processing Expense Reports Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports. Archiving/Un-archiving an Expense Report Deleting an Expense Report	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21 . 22 . 22 . 22
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports. Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email Processing Expense Reports Processing Expense Reports Un-processing Expense Reports Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports Archiving/Un-archiving an Expense Report Deleting an Expense Report. Summary	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21 . 21 . 22 . 22 . 22
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email Processing Expense Reports Processing Expense Reports Un-processing Expense Reports Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports. Archiving/Un-archiving an Expense Report Deleting an Expense Report. Summary	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21 . 21 . 22 . 22 . 22
Creating an Expense Report for another User Reviewing Expense Reports Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports Submitting an Expense Report for Review Financial Review of Expense Reports Remove from Inbox Approving an Expense Report from Email. Processing Expense Reports Processing Multiple Expense Reports Un-processing Expense Reports Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports Archiving/Un-archiving an Expense Report Summary <b>4. Reporting</b> Tracker Reports	. 15 . 16 . 17 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 18 . 20 . 21 . 21 . 21 . 22 . 22 . 22 . 22

Technical Support
-------------------

## Figures

Figure 1 - The Expense Tracker Process	5
Figure 2 - Tracker Suite Welcome Screen	8
Figure 3- The Expense Tracker Outbox	10
Figure 4 - A Personal Expense Report (Local Form)	10
Figure 5 - Expense Report Awaiting Approval	17
Figure 6 - Exception Highlighting	18
Figure 7 - Emailed Expense Report for Approval	19
Figure 8 - Accounting Inbox	20
Figure 9 - Processing an Expense Report	21
Figure 10 - Expense Report Snapshot Selection	
Figure 11 – Time and Expense Ledger Report	



# 1. Introduction

Welcome to the *Expense Tracker User Guide*. Expense Tracker is a useful tool for automating and managing your expense reporting processes.

## About this Guide

This guide describes the features of Expense Tracker. It is intended to serve as a central guide for all the major functionality and specific operations that a user can perform. It also covers the necessary information required to properly configure the application.

This documentation has been designed to be read in either electronic or hardcopy format. If you are reading the electronic copy, the text has been cross-referenced, so when you are referred to a page number or section, you can press CTRL and click that text and it will take you to the relevant information.

This guide should be treated as a companion guide to the *Tracker Suite Base Installation Guide* and the *Tracker Suite Base Configuration Guide*. It is also assumed that the reader has a basic familiarity with browser functionality and terminology, specifically Internet Explorer (IE), Chrome and Mozilla Firefox.

Refer to the *Tracker Suite Base Installation Guide* and the *Tracker Suite Base Configuration Guide* for:

- An overview of the Tracker Suite philosophy and how the various modules fit together.
- A review of Tracker Suite views, tools, and functionality common to all Tracker Suite modules.
- Complete installation and configuration instructions including information on the Tracker Suite security model.
- A glossary of Tracker Suite terms.

## Notes, Tips and Comments

Within this manual, you will find the following icons with comments and key information about Expense Tracker.



## Other Help Sources

In addition to this guide, more information about the Tracker Suite products is located at the Tracker Suite website: http://www.TrackerSuite.Net.

Users can visit our website for further information about our products, including sales literature, demos, and FAQ databases. For general information about our company, the Automation Centre, visit http://www.Acentre.com.

## About Expense Tracker

Expense Tracker records and monitors employee project and travel expenses. It automates the entire expense tracking process, eliminating inefficient and wasteful paper expense forms and their processing routines.

Employees submit Expense Reports online, charging their expenses to projects or activities. These Expense Reports are automatically routed to the appropriate supervisor for approval. The supervisor can manage expenses associated with projects with useful, customized views. When an Expense Report is approved, it is automatically forwarded to accounting for billing. All actions against the Expense Report are recorded throughout the whole process.

Expense Tracker integrates and shares information with other Tracker Suite modules to completely automate your organization's front office business activities. In addition, Expense Tracker also integrates with QuickBooks Online Edition, the setup and



configuration of which is described in the *Tracker Base Installation Guide* and the *Tracker Base Configuration Guide*.

#### **Typical User Roles**

Expense Tracker has work areas for specific user roles. The table below lists some of the common user roles and how they use Expense Tracker.

Roles	Use Expense Tracker to
Employees	<ul> <li>Create and submit Expense Reports.</li> <li>Accurately charge expenses to appropriate projects or activities.</li> </ul>
Managers	<ul> <li>Approve or disapprove employee Expense Reports.</li> <li>Verify that expenses are charged to appropriate projects or activities.</li> <li>Manage on-time creation and updating of Expense Reports.</li> <li>Create and submit Expense Reports for employees or contractors who do not have access to the database or cannot create their own Expense Reports (working off-site or sick).</li> </ul>
Accounting / Payroll	<ul> <li>Process Expense Reports for billing and payroll functions.</li> </ul>
Human Resources	Maintain approval rules in the workflow profile.
Executives	<ul> <li>Monitor project status and expenses associated with projects.</li> </ul>

## Expense Tracker Standard Features

- Easy-to-use online Expense Reports.
- Items entered are charged to clients, projects, or marked as non-billable.

- In/Out boxes allow users to track their Expense Reports as they move through the approval process.
- Expense Tracker Suite monitors and records all activity to reports, including authorization, creation, and modifications.
- Secure and automated routing based on pre-determined roles and approval cycles configured in Workflow Profile.
- All billing information is carried through the entire Expense Reporting process.
- Detailed billing slips suitable for mailing are automatically generated.
- Supports the billing of expenses back to customers or internal cost centers.
- Up-to-date accounts payable lists.
- Automatic reporting allows for real-time data viewing by employee, project, customer, cost center, or period.
- Currency and rate conversion support.
- The ability to set company policy checks and limits on charge amounts.
- Faster access to Expense Reports.
- Ability to create an unlimited number of line items on the Expense Report.
- Automatic posting to the SQL Tracker Data Warehouse Database.
- Supports all date and time and number formats.
- Expense Report Entry on IE, Chrome and Firefox browsers.

## The Expense Report Process



Figure 1 - The Expense Tracker Process

### Integration with Other Modules

Expense Tracker interacts with Personnel Tracker, Project Tracker, and Customer Tracker as shown in below.

- **Personnel Tracker:** Personnel Tracker provides the list of people who can submit an Expense Report as well provides other person related information like Business Unit, Manager etc. The user's Person Document also includes the employees' expense and travel authorizations, as well as their approval workflow for expense reports. Multiple workflows may be defined,
- Project Tracker: Project Tracker provides the list of projects against which Expense can be charged.



• **Customer Tracker:** Customer Tracker is a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) solution that automates your customer service processes by allowing other Tracker Suite modules electronic access to current CRM data such as Customer Information, Contacts, Contracts, Activities and related History.

All Expense Report related data is pushed to the Tracker Reports, a powerful reporting engine.

## Summary

This chapter provided an overview of the Expense Tracker module and how it streamlines the expense reporting and approval process.

This chapter examined the role-based user interface Tracker Suite provides, and how the various user roles, including Employees, Managers, Accounting and Payroll, HR and Executives interact with Expense Tracker. In the following chapters, we will take a closer look at these role-based interactions as we learn how Expense Reports are created, approved and processed.

We also touched on the interaction between Expense Tracker and other Tracker Suite modules, Personnel Tracker, Project Tracker, Customer Tracker and the Tracker Reports. The reports available are discussed in *Chapter 4. Reporting*.

In the next chapter, we will look at the Expense workspace and how it is utilized.



## 2. Expense Tracker Basics

In this chapter, we will learn the basic functions of Expense Tracker that all employees utilize in creating and tracking their Expense Reports.

In the next chapter, we will look at the experience of Managers with Expense Tracker, and the exclusive features available to them to better manage the expense reporting process of the organization.

In this section, we will review the Expense Tracker workspace, how to access it and how to navigate within it, and how the user's role in Tracker Suite shapes their work experience and access privileges.

For more information on setting up Expense Tracker (as well as the other Tracker Suite modules), please refer to the *Tracker Suite Base Installation Guide* and the *Tracker Suite Base Configuration Guide*.

## **Opening Expense Tracker**

To access Expense Tracker, open a supported internet browser (IE, Chrome, and Firefox) and enter the URL that corresponds to the location of Tracker Suite on your Web server. By default, Tracker Suite is installed in the TrackerApps folder on your Web server. Typically, you can access Tracker Suite by navigating to http://tracker/trackerapps/

Depending on the web server and domain configurations, a company may access Tracker Suite differently.

For example, a company using the domain www.Bizco.com might access Tracker Suite at http://Tracker.Bizco.com/TrackerApps/Default.htm.

After opening Tracker Suite in a Web browser, you are presented with a screen similar to the one shown below.



Figure 2 - Tracker Suite Welcome Screen

To open Expense Tracker, click the Tracker icon in the lower left corner of the screen to open the Navigator. A menu will appear of the various Tracker Suite modules that have been installed. Click Expense Tracker to bring up a sub-menu of available views, such as New Expense Report, Inbox and Outbox.

The available menu items in the Navigator are controlled by the user's role in Expense Tracker. For example, Administrators will typically have more menu items available to them than other users such as Managers.

Following is an overview of all the menu items available in Expense Tracker, with a brief description.

• New Expense Report: For creating a new Expense Report. Typically available to all users.

• Inbox / Outbox: These are message boxes for an internal email account for managing Expense Reports. All users have their own Inbox and Outbox. They are utilized in different ways, depending on the user's role.

For example:

The regular Inbox/Outbox views are utilized to track the user's saved, approved, or disapproved Expense Reports.

The Accounting Inbox/Outbox views are utilized to manage Expense Reports awaiting processing.

- All Expense Reports: A view of all Expense Reports in the system that have not been disapproved or fulfilled. This view is typically available to Managers and Administrators.
- Administration Dashboard: The views and tools within this category are used for high-level management of the Expense Reporting process, including administrative dashboards as well as views of archived and cancelled Expense Reports.
- **Proxy Inbox:** A view that will show all Expense Reports where the current user is a proxy and can approver and disapprove an Expense Report.
- Expense Code Templates: A view of Expense Report templates that simplify reporting. For example, a "Per Diem" template could be created with allocations for meals and travel, which could be utilized by travelling salespeople or project staff working in the field.

## Managing Personal Expense Reports

Expense Tracker offers users the ability to track and review their own Expense Reports with an easy-to-use Inbox / Outbox interface.

==	Outbox							« × » ? = 8	×
2	New 👻 Edit 🔹 📰 View 🔹	🤒 Enable Locking 🔍 Filter	🖶 Restore 🛛 🖷 Fit Screen Sear	rch:	<i>P</i>				
	Name	Report Link	Description	Amount	Period Start	Workflow	Status	Business Unit	1
	Joe User	Link	Testing	40.10	2/29/2016	Sent to Mark Manager for approval	Awaiting Approval	Project Management Office	
	Joe User	Link	New 5.0 Expense Report testing	515.67	2/8/2016	Sent to Mark Manager for approval	Awaiting Approval	Project Management Office	
	Joe User	Link	TESTING	111.62	1/25/2016	Processed Successfully	PROCESSED	Project Management Office	
	Joe User	Link	testing	3,272.54	1/25/2016	Sent to Mark Manager for approval	Awaiting Approval	Project Management Office	
	Joe User	Link	Testing through to Invoice Tracker	606.20	5/17/2015	Processed Successfully	PROCESSED	Project Management Office	
	Joe User	Link	Test 4.2.1 IE 11	52.50	11/9/2014	Processed Successfully	PROCESSED	Project Management Office	
	Joe User	Link	Testing 12345	826.56	11/2/2014	Processed Successfully	PROCESSED	Project Management Office	
	Joe User	Link	TESTING	72.55	10/5/2014	Processed Successfully	PROCESSED	Project Management Office	

Figure 3- The Expense Tracker Outbox

- The Inbox holds all Expense Reports that the user has saved but not submitted, as well as Expense Reports which have been returned to them after being disapproved by the user's Manager, or Accounting.
- The Outbox provides links to all the Expense Reports the user has submitted that have been approved, as well as those Expense Reports awaiting approval. The Outbox allows users to easily track the status of their Expense Reports.

## Creating a New Expense Report

To create a new Expense Report, either navigate to the New Expense Report view, or click New > Expense Report in the top menu of the Inbox / Outbox view, to open a new Expense Report.

Expense Repo	rt : Joe User													
Document saved.						Suba	t Foun 9. Close	C	Classa	Validato	Anneouse Tabla	Add Notos To Los	Drint	Drint To DDE
Main Los						3001	in Save & Cius	e Jave	Cluse	validate	Approver Table	Add hotes to Log	PHIL	Phile TO PDP
Main Log														
Employee:	Joe User		Expense Report	Id: JUSR-	JTFPQW									
Department:	Department		Manager:	Carlos	Computer									
Start Date:	06/05/2017	•	End Date:	06/18	/2017									
Description:	Onsite Installation expenses	for	Vendor ID:											
	watermant													
						1.007	142							
Advance:			I otal to Employ	ee:		1,083	.13							
Billable Total:		1,083.13	Non-Billable Tot	al:		(	0.00							
Total Sum:		1,083.13	View:	Form			~							
Form to Use:	Local	~	Doc Status:	New										
Attachments														
Add Row Add Exper	nse Select Project Select	Template Import Excel												
Date	Project	Code	Description	Pay Type	Billable	Non-Reimb	Receipt Total	Total						
2 🔇 🖄 🤤 06/06/	2017 Water Mart Install	Breakfast	bfast da 2	VISA	1		7.81	7.81						
2 🔾 🖄 🥥 06/06/	2017 Water Mart Install	Hotel	hotel	VISA	1		382.14	382.14						
2 🔾 🖄 🤤 06/05/	2017 Water Mart Install	Airfare	flight	VISA	7		598.75	598.75						
3 🔾 🖄 🤤 06/05/	2017 Water Mart Install	Car Rental	rental car	VISA			85.65	85.65						
5 🔇 🖄 🤤 06/05/	2017 Water Mart Install	Lunch	lunch day 1	VISA	1		8.78	8.78						

Figure 4 - A Personal Expense Report (Local Form)

- 1. Select the International Form if this Expense Report includes expenses incurred outside the United States.
- 2. If the time period for the Expense Report is not the default value, choose a new Period Start date by clicking the arrow button next to the field.
- 3. Provide a detailed overview of the Expense Report in the Description field.
- 4. There are a several ways to enter line items in the Expense Report:
  - a. Enter your first expense item on the first row, select the appropriate Project, Code, Disc, Pay Type, Amount, etc. and then click the Add Row button or the Insert icon (
     D. This will carry down the Date and Project identified on the first row.
  - b. You can also use the Add Expense button, which bring up a form instead of grid for entry, but will not carry down previous information unless you subsequently click the Fill From Previous button on this form.



- c. You can type information directly into the line-item fields. A type-ahead function will generate possible values in the text fields, based on available projects and the configuration of Expense Tracker. Values outside of these parameters will not be accepted.
- d. If you would like to select a project or projects to charge the line items against, click the Select Project button. A window will appear with a list of the projects. Check the boxes next to the projects you would like to charge the items against, and click OK. A line item will be created for each project you selected. If you click the Add Row button after using the Select Project button, the default project will be the last project you selected.
- 5. If you would like to create a new Expense Report from a template, click the Select Template button. Creating Expense Report templates is discussed later.
- 6. Utilize the checkbox to indicate if the line item is billable or non-billable.



The Billable checkbox may not be editable, depending on the configuration of Expense Tracker. This is discussed later in Expense Tracker Administration.

- 7. The Non-Reim checkboxes mark expenses for which employees do not need to be reimbursed.
- 8. If the International Form is used or if the tax fields are marked to be displayed in local form, the columns for Tax Type and Tax Amount will be displayed. These are used to record the type and amount of tax charged for the expense. The choices for Tax Type include GST: Goods and Services Tax and VAT: Value Added Tax. These are defined in Company Global setup document.
- 9. If the International Form is used, the columns for Currency and Rate will be displayed. Select the currency that was originally used to pay for the expense and the exchange rate will automatically be populated from the currency profile. The default exchange rate can be edited directly on the form.
- 10. The Receipt Total is the total amount paid for the expense in the original currency.
- 11. The Receipt Curr is also only available in the international form. The Total column displays how much the employee will be reimbursed for in the company's default currency.
- 12. The Receipt Total is the total amount paid for the expense in the original currency.
- 13. To add another line item, click the Add Row button.
- 14. You can modify your line items using the icons on the left side of each row.

	Delete: Delete the entire line item.
	<b>Edit:</b> This will open the Expense Detail dialog box for the row, allowing you to make changes.
$\odot$	<b>Insert Row:</b> This will insert a new row before the current row.

15. To add attachments, such as scanned receipts, open the Attachments area and

Attachments	the paperclip icon.
Drag and Drop file(s) here or 🔗	

- 16. This will open a window for adding and removing attachments to the Expense Report form. Once you've attached files and closed the Manage Attachments window, the files you've attached will appear in the Attachments section. Clicking on the file's hyperlink will allow you to open or save the file.
- 17. If the user attempts to submit an Expense Report that does not satisfy the configured rules for validation, the user will be notified and directed to make corrections. To avoid this, the user can click the Validate button in the upper right area of the Expense Report form. If all fields in the Expense Report have not been correctly entered then a notification outlining the errors will appear.

Once the Expense Report is complete, the user may save the Expense Report for future editing by clicking the Save or Save and Exit button, or submit the Expense Report for approval by clicking the Submit button.

If the user submits the Expense Report for approval, an email notification will be sent to the designated approver, and it will also appear in that individual's Expense Tracker Inbox as well. The user may review their submitted Expense Report and its status in their own Outbox.





Depending on the stage of workflow an Expense Report is in, informative messages for each Expense Report are listed in Inbox views in the Workflow Message column as to whose approvals are required and when to complete processing.

### Creating an Expense Report from a Template

Users also have the option to create a new Expense Report from a pre-configured template. This is a useful function if the user is routinely submitting similar Expense Reports, for example, if their job responsibilities require travel on a regular basis.

To create an Expense Report based on a template, the user clicks the Select Template button. A dialog boxes will appear, asking the user to select the template to use (for example, our travelling user might utilize a Per Diem or Per Diem International template), the period of the activity, and the cost center to charge it to. After selecting the appropriate option, the Expense Report will be auto-populated based on the template, with the amount fields left for the user to fill in.

The configuration of these templates is discussed in the *Tracker Suite Base Configuration Guide.* 

## Updating a Personal Expense Report

Users can update their saved or disapproved Expense Reports by just clicking the link provided in the Inbox view, which will open the Expense Report form for editing. After making changes, the user can save, validate or submit the updated Expense Report.

## Summary

In this chapter, we learned how users can manage their personal Expense Reports using Expense Tracker's intuitive Inbox / Outbox interface. The Inbox makes it easy to save and update Expense Reports prior to submission, and the Outbox simplifies the tracking of recently submitted Expense Reports and their status, as well as the review of previous, approved reports.

We walked through the creation of an Expense Report, including how to use an International form if the Expense Report includes charges accrued in a foreign currency, and how the user can validate an Expense Report prior to submitting it.

This chapter covered an activity that all Expense Tracker users participate in, creating personal Expense Reports. The next chapter will cover the experience of Managers and Accounting in managing and processing Expense Reports.



## **3. Advanced Expense Tracker**

This chapter will study the tools that users with Supervisor, Manager and/or Accounting roles may utilize to better manage the expense reporting process. We will learn how to create an Expense Report for another employee, how to track and review Expense Reports in the system, and how the Expense Report approval process works in Expense Tracker.



In Tracker Suite, there is usually more than one way to accomplish any single action. The activities described in this chapter may only illustrate one workflow from a particular view, but the activity may be available in other views as well, depending on the user's role in Tracker Suite.

## Creating an Expense Report for another User

Users may be profiled in the Expense Tracker Database Setup Document to have the ability to create Expense Reports for others, a useful feature when an employee is absent on vacation or extended travel. The Database Setup Document is discussed in more detail the *Tracker Suite Base Configuration Guide*.

Users with this ability may create an Expense Report for another employee from the Administration Dashboard view by clicking New > Create Expense Report for Others from the top menu. A dialog box will appear with a list of employees, pulled from Personnel Tracker. Select the employee on whose behalf the Expense Report is to be created. A new Expense Report form will open, named with the selected.

Managers can also create Expense Reports on behalf of their staff. In the Expense Tracker Manager Inbox, there is an option under the New button for "Expense Report for My Staff". This will return a list of employees where they are designated as Manager in Personnel Tracker.

📻 Adminis	stration Da	shboard
🔁 New 🕶	🌮 Edit 🗸	View •
Expe	nse Report	
Expe	nse Report F	or Others

= M	anager Inbox
1	New 👻 🌮 Edit 👻 📰 View 🗸
	Expense Report
	Expense Report for my Staff

Fill out the Expense Report as needed. An Expense Report template, as discussed in the previous chapter, may be utilized. When the Expense Report is submitted, it will follow the approval workflow designated for the employee on whose behalf it was created.



Although the Expense Report will be in the name of the selected employee, the actual creator of the Expense Report will be named in the Activity Log.

## **Reviewing Expense Reports**

Expense Tracker simplifies the review of Expense Reports in the system and those awaiting approval.

For users who are designated approvers of Expense Reports, their Expense Tracker Inbox and Outbox not only hold the Expense Reports they have created, but also the Expense Reports they are responsible for reviewing and approving.

- Their Expense Tracker Inbox holds Expense Reports awaiting their review and approval.
- Their Expense Tracker Outbox holds Expense Reports they have either approved or disapproved.

Once an Expense Report is submitted, it is automatically routed to the Expense Tracker Inbox of the designated approver. Depending on the configured approval workflow, an Expense Report may require more than one approver.

### Tracking Expense Reports with Other Views

As well as the Expense Tracker Inbox / Outbox views, users may also have access to other views to track Expense Reports in the system, based on their role in Expense Tracker. These views include:

- All Expense Reports: This view shows all of the Expense Reports in Expense Tracker users, and their status.
- Administration Dashboard: As well as showing all of the Expense Reports in Tracker Suite, it also provides a number of management functions.



## Approving or Disapproving Expense Reports

Expense Tracker Suite streamlines the approval process for Expense Reports. It offers several methods of approving and disapproving Expense Reports. Once the Expense Report has met its approval requirements, it is sent to Accounting for review and processing.

In all cases of disapproval, the reviewer will be prompted to provide a reason for disapproving the Expense Report. An optional configuration can be done that will also prompt for a reason on Approval. These reasons will be included in the Activity Log of the Expense Report. For Disapproval, this reason will be provided in the email notification sent to the creator of the Expense Report, who will also receive the disapproved Expense Report in their Inbox view.

Expense Tracker offers several views from which Expense Reports may be reviewed and approved. When an Expense Report is submitted for approval, it is routed to the Inbox of the designated approver(s). Approvers with access to the All Expense Reports and Administration Dashboard can also access Expense Reports from these locations.

Inbox															🔁 < 🍣	22
Expense Re	port :	Joe User														_
									Appro	ove Dis	approve	Close	Approver Table	Submit for	Review P	rint
Main Log																
Employee:	Joe L	lser		Expense Report Id:	JUSR-JTFPQW											
Department:	Depa	rtment		Manager:	Carlos Computer											
Start Date:	06/05	5/2017		End Date:	06/18/2017											
Description:	Onsit	e Installation expenses for		Vendor ID:												
	Wate	i Mari L														
Advance:		0.00		Total to Employee:		1.083.13										
Billable Total:		1.083.13		Non-Billable Total:		0.00										
Total Sum:		1.083.13		Viaur	Print Preview	~										
rotal Sam.		1000110		Dec Status	Awaition Anoroval											
				Doc Status.	Prinarding Approval											
- Attachment	s															
Date		Project	Account Code	Category	Code	Total	Description	Pay Type	Billable	Non-Reimb	Tax Type	Tax Am	vount Re	celpt Total	Receipt Curr	_
2017-08-0	05	Water Mart Install	81033	10 Air	Airfare	598.	5 flight	VISA	¥	N			0	598.	75 US Dollars	
2017-08-0	05	Water Mart Install	61024	0 Transportation	Car Rental	85.1	15 rental car	VISA	Y	N			0	85	65 US Dollars	_
2017-06-0	05	Water Mart Install	61033	0 Meals	Lunch	8.	6 Junch day 1	VISA	Y	N		_	0	8	78 US Dollars	
2017-00-0	00	Water Mart Install	61033	10 Means	bieskast	382	a botal	NISA	Y	N		_	0	302	14 US Dollars	
	**	Trans. Hart hard					- paran	intere .								_
Accounting Total	Is for: Joe	User														
Period: 2017-06	-05- 2017	-06-18														
Currency: US Do	llars															
Acct Code	Amount	Tax Amount Total														
6102400		85.65 0.00	85.65													
6103300		997.48 0.00	997.48													
Totals	1	1,083.13 0.00	1,083.13													

First, the approver opens the submitted Expense Report.

Figure 5 - Expense Report Awaiting Approval

In addition to the default Print Preview view shown in *Figure 5*, the approver can also click the View field in the header (underneath the Total to Employee field) to review the Expense Report in different formats including: Totals, By Date, By Project, By Account Code and By Payment Type.

A General Ledger area at the bottom of the form shows the accounting totals for the expense reporting period, broken down by account codes.

If a line item on the Expense Report exceeds the daily limit set for the employee submitting the report, it will be highlighted in red.





Figure 6 - Exception Highlighting

### Submitting an Expense Report for Review

Depending on your configuration of Expense Tracker, managers may have the option to submit the Expense Report for review. If enabled, the Manager can click a Submit for Review button, which will send the Expense Report to the next step in the approval process without formally entering it into the approval cycle. Based on the response to the review, the Manager can either formally approve or disapprove the Expense Report.

#### Financial Review of Expense Reports

Expense Tracker workflow supports a Financial Review component. This component is enabled within the Expense Tracker Database Setup document, which is discussed in the *Tracker Suite Base User Configuration Guide*. If Financial Review is enabled, when the Expense Report is approved, designated personnel will receive email notifications of the Expense Report.

## Remove from Inbox

For those who are responsible for approving Expense Reports, an option is available to clear old Expense Reports from their Inbox without having to delete them. To remove selected Expense Reports from the Inbox, the user clicks Edit > Remove from Inbox.

## Approving an Expense Report from Email

Expense Tracker can be configured to email submitted Expense Report forms to designated approvers for review. These emails include hyperlinks allowing the recipient to approve or disapprove the Expense Report in the email.



	noreply@trackersuite	e.net>						1:43	PM (9 mir	nutes ago	D) 17	+
to me 💌												
Approve	e Disapprov	e										
Employee:		Joe User			Expense Report ID:		JUSR-JT	FPOW				
Vendor ID:												
Description:		Onsite Installation exp	enses for WaterMart	t								
Period Start:		2017-06-05			Period End:		2017-06-	18				
Report Total:		1,083.13			Billable Total:		1,083.13					
Total to Employe	ee:	1,083.13			Non-Billable Total:		0.00					
Advance to Emp	oloyee:	0										
Link to Exp Attachments Personnel T	pense Report s Fracker 5.1 User Gu	06/16/2017 11:35 AM:	Expense Report cre	eated by: Joe Us	er 06/16/2017 11:43 AM: Expense	e Report saved by: Joe	Jser 06/16/201	' 11:43 AM: E)	cpense Report	submitted b	y Joe User	
Log: Link to Exp Attachments Personnel T	pense Report s Fracker 5.1 User Gu	06/16/2017 11:35 AM: iide.pdf	Expense Report cre	code	Total Description	Pav Type	Billable Nor	11:43 AM: E	rpense Report	submitted by	y Joe User	TR
Log: Link to Exp Attachments Personnel T Date	pense Report s Fracker 5.1 User Gu Project	06/16/2017 11:35 AM: iide.pdf Account Code	Expense Report cre	Code	Total Description	Pay Type	Billable Nor	11:43 AM: E	Tax Amount	Receipt Total	y Joe User Receipt Cur	rr Ra
Log: Link to Exp Attachments Personnel T Date	pense Report s Fracker 5.1 User Gu Project Water Mart Install	06/16/2017 11:35 AM: iide.pdf Account Code 6103300 6103300	Expense Report cre Category Air	Code	Total Description	Pay Type VISA	Billable Nor Reii Y N	11:43 AM: E	Tax Amount	Receipt Total 598.75 55.65	Receipt Cur US Dollars	nrRa 1
Log: Link to Exp Attachments Personnel T Date 2017-06-05 2017-06-05	pense Report s Fracker 5.1 User Gu Project Water Mart Install Water Mart Install	06/16/2017 11:35 AM: iide.pdf Account Code 6103300 6102400 6102400	Expense Report cre Category Air Transportation	Code Airfare Car Rental	Total Description 598-75/light 85/Sental car 85/Sental car 9 75/mont day 1	Pay Type VISA MISA	Billable Nor Reil Y N Y N	Tax Type	Tax Amount 0 0.00	Receipt Total 598.75 85.65 9 78	y Joe User Receipt Cur US Dollars US Dollars	1 1
Log: Link to Exp Attachments Personnel T Date 2017-06-05 2017-06-05 2017-06-05	pense Report s Fracker 5.1 User Gu Project Water Mart Install Water Mart Install Water Mart Install Water Mart Install	06/16/2017 11:35 AM: iide.pdf Account Code 6103300 6102400 6103300	Expense Report cre Category Air Transportation Meals Meals	Code Airfare Car Rental Lunch Breakfast	Total         Description           598.75/light         35.65/ental car           85.65/ental car         7.81/hct rig 2	Pay Type VISA VISA VISA VISA	Billable Nor Reii Y N Y N Y N	11:43 AM: E	Tax Amount 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Receipt Total 598.75 85.65 8.78 7 81	Receipt Cul US Dollars US Dollars US Dollars	m Ra 1 1



After an Expense Report is approved, it is typically sent to Accounting for processing. However, Expense Tracker has a Financial Review process that may be enabled, which will send the approved Expense Report to a Financial Manager for a review, before it is sent in for processing. This is discussed in the Tracker Suite Base Configuration Guide. \_\_\_\_

19



## **Processing Expense Reports**

Once an Expense Report is approved, it is typically sent to Accounting for processing, although Expense Tracker may be configured to automatically process Expense Reports when they are approved. Processing an Expense Report for billing is the final step in the Expense Reporting approval cycle. Once an Expense Report is processed for billing, no further changes can be made. When an Expense Report is processed for billing, the line items are sent to Tracker Reports as well as to Tracker Suite GL.

Typically, the Accounting Inbox view is utilized to review Expense Reports awaiting processing, although this can also be accomplished from the All Expense Reports and Administration Dashboard views. There are optional "Mark Paid" and "Mark Received" actions that can be done via the Administration Dashboard>Edit button. Clicking these actions will flag the Expense Reports appropriately in both the Administration Dashboard and Accounting Inbox views, as well as send an email notification to the Submitter.

::	⊇ Accounting Inbox											
쁜	New 👻 🌮 Edit 🔹 📰 🕅	ờ Edit + 🔟 View + 🔒 Enable Locking 🔍 Filter 🕀 Restore 🐃 Fit Screen Search:										
	Name	Report Link	Description	Amount	Period Start	Workflow	Status	Business Unit	Mark Paid	Mark Received		
	Joe User	Link	Testing	204.76	3/21/2016	Sent to Accounting	APPROVED	Project Management Office	Yes	Yes		
	Joe User	Link	Trip for client installation	1,379.88	3/21/2016	Sent to Accounting	APPROVED	Project Management Office		Yes		
	Joe User	Link	New 5.0 Expense Report testing	515.67	2/8/2016	Sent to Accounting	APPROVED	Project Management Office				
	Dave Devloper	Link	Testing Chrome 38	62.50	10/27/2014	Sent to Accounting	APPROVED	Project Management Office				

Figure 8 - Accounting Inbox

While Expense Reports may be processed from a view without being opened, as described below, typically the user opens it and, after reviewing the contents, clicks the Process button.

Accounting Tabox											æ (							
Expense Re	eport :	Joe Use	er															
									Close	Submit for Rev	iew Ap	pprover Table	Disapprove	Process	Open for Edit	Print	Print To Pi	DF
Main Log																		
Employee:	Joe U	Jser				Expense Repo	rt Id:	JUSR-	BDGJ40									
Business Unit:	Proje	ct Managem	ent Office		Manager:		Mark	Manager									Î	
Start Date:	03/2	1/2016			9	End Date:		04/03	/2016									
Description:	Testi	ng				Vendor ID:												
Advance:				0.0		Total to Emplo	yee:				204.76							
Billable Total:		204.76		Non-Billable Total:					0.00									
Total Sum:		204.76		View:		Print Preview 👻												
						Doc Status:		APPR	OVED									
Stub No:						Batch No:												
Bank ID:						Payment Date	:											
- Attachment	ts																	
		Account					Non-	Tax	Tax Rec	int Receipt	-	1						
Date Proje	ect ort for London	Code	Category	Code	Total Description	Pay Type Billa	ble Reimb	Туре	Amount Tota	Curr	Rate							
2016-03-07 Office	ort for London	6103300	Masia	Breaktast	17.27 brast day one	Master Card Y	N		0	0.07 Pound	1.9978							
2016-03-07 Office 2016-03-07 Supp	e ort for London	6103300	Meals	Dinner	20.51 dinner day one	Master Card V	N		0	10.32 British	1.9070							
2016-03-08 Supp	e ort for London	6103300	Meals	Breakfast	6 98 bfast day two	Master Card Y	N		0	3 50 British	1.9878							
2016-03-08 Supp	e ort for London	6103300	Meals	Lunch	15.21 lunch day two	CASH Y	N		0	7.65 British	1.9878							~
Office	e 				,,				-	Pound								

When an Expense Report is processed this way, at this time the user is given the opportunity to enter payment information including Stub No, Batch No, Bank Id and Payment Date.

### Processing Multiple Expense Reports

The user may also process the Expense Report from the Accounting Inbox view, by checking the box for the Expense Report to be processed, and clicking Edit > Process Selected. Multiple Expense Reports may be processed simultaneously in this fashion.

### **Un-processing Expense Reports**

At times, it is necessary to call back an Expense Report that has already been processed. In this event, the user navigates to the Administration Dashboard view, which shows all Expense Reports in the system, including those that have been processed. The user clicks the check box next to the processed Expense Report(s) that the user wishes to unprocess, and then clicks Edit > Unprocess Selected.

## Editing Approved or Processed Expense Reports

Users can edit approved and processed Expense Reports by opening the document and clicking the Open for Editing button in the upper right corner of the form. The user is prompted for the reason for the edit, which will be included in the form's activity log. A snapshot of the current Expense Report is also taken.



If the Open For Editing button is not available in the form, that function may not be enabled in the Expense Tracker Database Setup document.

At that point, the Expense Report is opened and editable. After updating the form, the user clicks the Post Changes button to finalize the edits. The user is warned that this will be the only opportunity to edit the form, and that the form will be locked after posting. However, users with an Administrator or greater role may still open the document for editing, if necessary.

The Activity Log for the Expense Report now includes the editing event, and when the changes were posted. The previous snapshot of the Expense Report can be accessed by clicking the Show Change History button in the top right corner of the form, which will open a window showing all previous snapshots of the Expense Report.



elect Snapshot to Vie	w:	
Snapshot Date	Reason	
3/21/2012 8:53:45 AM	Attach scanned receipts for records.	

Figure 10 - Expense Report Snapshot Selection

## Archiving/Un-archiving an Expense Report

Expense Reports can be archived or un-archived. Archiving greatly improves the performance in terms of loading the view and also makes it easier for the users to search and filter the records. Users can archive Expense Report by selecting them in the Administration Dashboard view and clicking Edit > Archive Selected.

Users can view archived Expense Reports in the Administration Dashboard view by clicking View > Archived from the top menu. Expense Reports can be un-archived from this view by selecting the Expense Reports and clicking Edit > Unarchive Selected.

## **Deleting an Expense Report**

Deleting an Expense Report is an activity reserved for members with the proper privileges as defined in the Security Profile. It should be done with discretion. Before deleting an Expense Report, be sure this is the correct course of action. Following are a few examples in which deleting an Expense Report is usually a safe practice:

- Someone has submitted an Expense Report and immediately recognizes an error before others have had time to access and act upon the submission.
- The Expense Report is an obvious duplicate (or even a direct copy).
- The dates or employee name on the Expense Report are obviously incorrect.

To delete an Expense Report, locate the Expense Report in one of the views, for example the All Expense Reports view, and click the check box to the left of its name. Click Edit > Delete from the top menu. Multiple Expense Reports may be selected for simultaneous deletion. The user will be prompted for confirming the delete action.

## Summary

This chapter focused on the experience of Supervisors, Managers and Accounting with Expense Tracker in managing the expense reporting process of the organization. Users with these roles have access to many more functions than General Users, in addition to having the power to approve and process Expense Reports, these users can also create Expense Reports for employees as well as delete (or preferably archive) Expense Reports.

22

# 4. Reporting

As well as simplifying and automating the processes behind Expense Report creation, approval and processing, Expense Tracker also provides organizations useful information on their expense reporting processes in the form of reports.

### **Tracker Reports**

Tracker Reports, is a Web based reporting engine that receives data from Expense Tracker, produces the Time and Expense Ledger report. This report lists all the entries from a processed Expense Report. The report shows the summary of time and expense data by Project and Employee. More fields are available on which the data can be summarized or filtered like task, activity, billing type etc.

Tracker Reports												
Reports - Time And Expense Ledger												
From Date:	01/01/2017	To Date:	06/16/2017 OR :	Year	to Date 💌							
Project Title(s):		Project Manager(s):	Y Project T	ype(s):	*	Department:						
Archive Status:	Active only	<b>v</b>										
Run Report	Run Report Clear Filters Custom Filters											
🦻 Edit 🗸 🖉 Refresh 🛛 🙀 Export 👻 🕍 Report Designer 🛛 😑 Fit Screen 🛛 🔁 Revert 🛛 🔏 Save As												
Employee I	Project Name	Activity Desc	Expenses	Time								
Grand Total			5,118.13	85.40								
Joe User (1)			1,083.13	0.00								
i - 1	Water Mart Install		1,083.13	0.00								
		bfast da 2	7.81	0.00								
		flight	598.75	0.00								
		hotel	382.14	0.00								
		lunch day 1	8.78	0.00								
		rental car	85.65	0.00								

Figure 11 – Time and Expense Ledger Report

Similar to views, users can Export a report to Excel or PDF. Fields can be dropped and dragged based on preference and users can create a private version of their report by using the Save As button.

Tracker reports are accessed via the Navigator in Reporting > Tracker Report. Access to Tracker reports can be controlled via the Menu Navigator as well as through the Tracker Report Profiles, both of which are generally maintained by the Tracker Administrator or Guru. *Please refer to the Tracker Datawarehouse Guide for more information on Tracker Reports.* 

# A. Troubleshooting and Support

## **Technical Support**

To report any bugs or problems, please contact the Automation Centre at the following address:

#### **Automation Centre**

435 East 9th Street Tucson, Arizona 85705 Phone: 520.882.9287 Fax: 520.623.8721 E-mail: support@acentre.com Website: www.TrackerSuite.Net or <u>www.Acentre.com</u>

As with all other Tracker Suite Suite applications, Automation Centre can customize Expense Tracker to meet your company's specific needs.